

# **Council Minutes**

Las Vegas, Nevada 10 April 1999

## **Abstract**

The Council of the Society met at 7:00 p.m. on Saturday, April 10, 1999, at the La Quinta Inn, 3970 Paradise Road, Las Vegas, Nevada. These are the minutes for the meeting. Several items were discussed in Executive Session and are reported in these open minutes.

## Contents

1.	MINUTES	3
	Section 1. Call to Order	3
	Subsection 1.1. Opening of the Meeting and Introductions	3
	Subsection 1.2. 1998 Elections	3
	Section 2. Minutes	3
	Subsection 2.1. Minutes of the January 1999 Council	3
	Subsection 2.2 . Minutes of Business by Mail	4
	Subsection 2.2.1. Election to the Executive Committee	4
	Subsection 2.2.2. Election to the Colloquium Editorial Committee	4
	Subsection 2.2.3. Statement on Tenure	4
	Section 3. Consent Agenda	5
	Section 4. Reports of Boards and Standing Committees	5
	Subsection 4.1. Nominating Committee Report	5
	Subsection 4.2. Centennial Fellowships Committee Report	7
	Subsection 4.3. Editorial Boards Committee Report	7
	Section 5. Old Business	7
	Section 6. New Business	7
	Section 7. Announcements, Information and Record	7
	Section 8. Adjournment	7
II.	ATTACHMENTS	8
	Attachment A. 1999 Council	8
	Attachment B. Minutes of Business by Mail	10
	Attachment C. Background on Individual Dues and Memberships	12
	Attachment D. Calendar of Events	13

#### 1. MINUTES

### Section 1. Call to Order

### **Subsection 1.1. Opening of the Meeting and Introductions**

President Browder, who presided throughout, called the meeting to order at 7:00PM (PDT). Members were introduced. Members present were: James G. Arthur, John L. Bryant, Francis Bonahon, Felix E. Browder, Robert J. Daverman, John M. Franks, Susan Friedlander, Frederick P. Gardiner, Gail D. L. Ratcliff, Mary Beth Ruskai, Bernard Russo (Associate Secretary with vote), Michael Starbird, Karen Vogtmann, and Nolan Wallach.

Also attending were John Ewing (ED) and Paul Rabinowicz (Nominating Committee Chair).

The current membership of the Council, as of the April 99 Council meeting, is listed in Attachment A.

### **Subsection 1.2. 1998 Council Elections**

The Society conducted its annual elections in the fall of 1998. Those elected took office on February 1, 1999, and the newly elected members of the Council are:

Vice President: James G. Arthur, University of Toronto

Members-at-Large Haim Brezis, Rutgers University and IHES

Robert A. Fefferman, University of Chicago Donald G. Saari, Northwestern University Tatiana Toro, University of Washington

Nolan R. Wallach, University of California, San Diego

In addition, Felix E. Browder became President on that date. As a result of Council action in May 1998, John Bryant became the Associate Secretary for the Southeastern Section.

### Section 2. Minutes

## Subsection 2.1. Minutes of the January 1999 Council

The minutes of the January 1999 Council were distributed by mail and were available on the web. The following addition and corrections were noted.

An item 3.2.4, stated below, was omitted.

## 3.2.4. Mathematical Surveys and Monographs Editorial Committee

The Council approved the appointment of Michael Loss (Georgia Institute of Technology) on the Mathematical Surveys and Monographs Editorial Committee

for a three year term, beginning 01 February 1999 and ending 31 January 2002.

In the Minutes of Business by Mail (Attachment B, item B.1), the term of Jonathan Alperin's appointment to the Mathematical Reviews Editorial Committee began 01 February 1998 and will end 31 January 2001, not the beginning date of 01 February 1999 and ending date of 31 January 2002 given there.

Susan Friedlander's name was misspelled in Item 3.3.1.

The minutes were approved as corrected.

### **Subsection 2.2.** Minutes of Business by Mail.

The Council elected a member to its Executive Committee, approved an appointment to an Editorial Committee, and endorsed a Statement on Tenure so as "to speak in the name of the Society." Minutes for this business are found in Attachment B. The Secretary requested approval of these minutes, which the Council granted. The actions are summarized below.

#### Subsection 2.2.1. Election to the Executive Committee.

The Council held an election for a member to serve on the Executive Committee (EC). Karen Vogtmann, Member-at-Large, was elected to a 4-year term beginning March 17, 1999, until a new member is elected to replace her. That election will occur in February 2003.

## Subsection 2.2.2. Election to the Colloquium Editorial Committee.

The Council voted to endorse the recommendation of the Editorial Boards Committee that Susan Friedlander be reappointed to a 3-year term, from 01 February 1999 through 31 January 2002, on the Colloquium Editorial Committee.

Subsection 2.2.3. The Council voted approval of the following Statement on Tenure so as to speak in the name of the Society.

## STATEMENT ON TENURE

The American Mathematical Society strongly supports the institution of tenure. Tenure plays an essential role in guaranteeing academic freedom and institutional integrity, benefitting institutions, students, faculty, disciplines and society at large.

Tenure maintains the strength of academic institutions, as it is the permanent faculty that provides leadership and direction. Tenure provides stability and mitigates the effects of fads and fashions.

- Tenure helps to renew academic disciplines by ensuring the continued supply of individuals who will dedicate their careers to advancing those disciplines.
- Tenure helps maintain academic quality by establishing a set of high standards that must be met for continued employment. Standards for ongoing contract renewals are typically less stringent.
- Tenure supports work on significant long-term projects.
- Tenure provides strong protection for free flow of ideas, guaranteeing the right to express views without fear of dismissal.
- Tenure provides the benefit of job security, which helps attract highly talented individuals to teaching and research.

Tenure has played a central role in establishing and maintaining the strength and quality of American higher education. Individual abuses of the tenure system should be addressed directly, rather than by eliminating one of the cornerstones of our educational system.

## Section 3. Consent Agenda

There were no consent items in this agenda

## Section 4. Reports of Boards and Standing Committees

Items 4.1 and 4.3 were considered in executive session.

## **Subsection 4.1. Nominating Committee**

The AMS Nominating Committee submitted a report which has been filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 1999 as Report No. 990410-001. In it they recommended nominations of candidates for election in the 1999 Election and suggested consideration of a slightly different financial arrangements policy between the AMS and the institution/organization employing the AMS President.

### **Subsection 4.1.1. President-Elect**

The Nominating Committee recommended **HYMAN BASS** (Columbia University) and **DAN W. STROOCK** (MIT) as candidates for election to the post of President-Elect for a one year term beginning February 1, 2000. After serving as President-Elect for one year, the winner of this election then will serve two years as President, followed by one year as Immediate Past President. Both agreed to run. The Council nominated both of them.

The Committee recommended that **I. KAPLANSKY** (MSRI) write the nomination article for Bass and that **V. GUILLEMIN** (MIT) and **S. VARADHAN** (NYU) write one for Stroock, which the Council approved.

#### **Subsection 4.1.2. Vice President**

The Nominating Committee recommended and the Council nominated **DAVID EISENBUD** (MSRI) and **THOMAS G. KURTZ** (University of Wisconsin) as candidates for election to the position of Vice President for a term of three years, beginning February 1, 2000, until January 31, 2003.

### **Subsection 4.1.3. Members at Large of the Council**

The Nominating Committee recommended and the Council nominated PATRICIA E BAUMAN (Purdue University), WILLIAM FULTON (University of Michigan), SUSAN C. GELLER (Texas A&M University), MARTIN GOLUBITSKY (University of Houston), ELLEN E. KIRKMAN (Wake Forest University), JONATHAN M. ROSENBERG (University of Maryland), CLAUDE L. SCHOCHET (Wayne State University), RONALD J. STERN (University of California at Irvine), LISA M. TRAYNOR (Bryn Mawr College), and WILLIAM YSLAS VELEZ (University of Arizona) as candidates for election to the position of members at large of the Council (five to be elected). The term is three years, beginning February 1, 2000, and ending January 31, 2003.

#### **Subsection 4.1.4. Board of Trustees**

The Nominating Committee recommended and the Council nominated **ERIC M. FRIEDLANDER** (Northwestern University) and **DONALD E. MCCLURE** (Brown University) as candidates for election to one position as trustee for a period of five years beginning February 1, 2000, and ending January 31, 2005.

## **Subsection 4.1.5. Recommendation concerning the President**

The report of the Nominating Committee included the following statement:

We believe that the duties of the AMS President have become so time consuming, in part because of a) the increased importance of vigorous AMS representation in Washington, and b) the duties associated with the five policy committees, that it is extremely difficult for anyone to perform satisfactorily as President while simultaneously carrying out their usual responsibilities at their home institution.

We thus strongly recommend that full release time for the President for the two years of his or her presidential term be negotiated with the President's institution, possibly with some AMS funding.

The Council endorsed the spirit of the report, recommending that the Board of Trustees assure flexibility in partial funding, as needed and appropriate, to support release time for the President.

## **Subsection 4.2. Centennial Fellowships Committee Report**

The Centennial Fellowships Committee has announced fellowship awards to Dr. Charles W. Rezk (Northwestern University), Dr. Bin Wang (Brown University), Dr. Chang You Wang (University of Chicago, now at Loyola University of Chicago), and Dr. Tonghai Yang (SUNY at Stony Brook). All have accepted. The alternate was Dr. Alexander Polishchuk (Harvard University).

#### **Subsection 4.3. Editorial Boards Committee**

The Editorial Boards Committee recommended the appointment of **DENIS TALAY** (INRIA Sophia Antipolis, Nice, France) to the Mathematics of Computation Editorial Committee, a step that would involve an expansion of the Editorial Committee, not simply replacement of an editor. The Council recommended to the Board of Trustees (BT) an increase in the size of the Mathematics of Computation Editorial Committee from 4 to 5 members and (2) approved the appointment of Talay to the new post, contingent upon positive BT action.

## Section 5. Old Business

#### **Individual Member Dues for 2000**

According to the bylaws, the Council sets the dues with the approval of the Board of Trustees. [Article IX, Section 2, states in part: "The annual dues of an ordinary member ... shall be established by the Council with the approval of the Trustees."]

The Executive Director and the Secretary recommended to the Council that (1) ordinary high dues remain at their 1999 level of \$132 for 2000 and (2) the high/low dues cutoff be increased from \$55,000 to \$65,000 for 2000. The Council approved both measures and recommended them to the Board of Trustees.

## **Section 6. New Business**

The Executive Director, John H. Ewing, gave his annual report to the Council. That report is filed in the AMS Committee Report Book for 1999 as Report No. 990410-002.

## Section 7. Announcements, Information and Record

See the listing of future meetings in Attachment D.

## Section 8. Adjournment

The Council adjourned at 9:08PM (PDT).

## II. ATTACHMENTS

## ATTACHMENT A. 1999 COUNCIL

## AMERICAN MATHEMATICAL SOCIETY

effective 2/01/99

President	Felix E. Browder	Rutgers University	
<b>Immediate Past President</b>	Arthur Jaffe	Harvard University	1999
Vice Presidents	James G. Arthur	University of Toronto	2001
	Jennifer Tour Chayes	Microsoft	2000
	H. Blaine Lawson	SUNY at Stony Brook	1999
Secretary	Robert J. Daverman	University of Tennessee	2000
Former Secretary	Robert M. Fossum	University of Illinois	
Associate Secretaries	John L. Bryant	Florida State University 2000	
	Susan Friedlander	Univ. Illinois at Chicago	1999
	Bernard Russo	Univ. California, Irvine 2001	
	Lesley Sibner	Polytechnic Inst. of NY	2000
Treasurer	John M. Franks	Northwestern University	2000
Associate Treasurer	B. A. Taylor	University of Michigan	2000

## **Representative of Committees**

Bulletin Editorial Committee	Donald G. Saari, Chair	Northwestern University 1999	
Colloquium Editorial CommitteeSusan	Friedlander, Chair Univ. 1	Illinois at Chicago 1998	
Journal of the AMS	Benedict H. Gross, Chair	Harvard University	1998
Math Reviews Editorial Committee	Hugh Montgomery, Chair	University of Michigan	1998
Math Surveys Editorial Committee	Tudor Ratiu, Chair	Univ. California, Santa Cruz	1998
Mathematics of Computation Comm.	Lars B. Wahlbin, Chair	Cornell University	1998
Proceedings Editorial Committee	Clifford Earle, Chair	Cornell University	2000
Transactions and Memoirs Comm.	Peter B. Shalen, Chair	Univ. Illinois at Chicago 1998	
Executive Committee	John B. Conway	University of Tennessee 2000	
Executive Committee	Andrew Odlyzko	AT&T Bell Labs	1999

## **Members at Large**

Francis Bonahon	University of Southern California		1999
Haim Brezis	University of Paris XI/Rutgers University		2001
Robert L. Bryant	Duke University		2000
Robert A. Fefferman	University of Chicago	2001	
Frederick P. Gardiner	Brooklyn College (CUNY)		1999
Jane M. Hawkins	University of North Carolina		2000
Karen H. Parshall	University of Virginia	2000	
Gail D. L. Ratcliff	University of Missouri at St. Louis		1999
Mary Beth Ruskai	University of Massachusetts at Lowell		2000
Donald G. Saari	Northwestern University		2001
Joel H. Spencer	NYU-Courant Institute		1999

Michael Starbird	University of Texas at Austin	2000	
Tatiana Toro	University of Washington		2001
Karen Vogtmann	Cornell University		1999
Nolan Wallach	University of California, San Diego		2001

## **Executive Committee**

Felix Browder	Rutgers University	2001	
John B. Conway	University of Tennessee		2000
Robert J. Daverman	University of Tennessee		2000
Arthur M. Jaffe	Harvard University		1999
Andrew Odlyzko	AT&T Bell Labs		1999
Joel H. Spencer	New York University		2001
Karen Vogtmann	Cornell University		2002

## **Trustees**

Roy Adler	IBM Watson Lab	2002
Felix E. Browder	Rutgers University	2000
Michael G. Crandall	University California, Santa Barbar	a 2000
John M. Franks	Northwestern University	2000
Linda Keen	CUNY 2003	
Andy Roy Magid	University of Oklahoma	2001
Donald E. McClure	Brown University	1999
B. A. Taylor	University of Michigan	2000

### ATTACHMENT B. MINUTES OF BUSINESS BY MAIL

## AMERICAN MATHEMATICAL SOCIETY MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL BUSINESS BY MAIL March 18, 1999

In a mail ballot dated February 15, 1999, there were 29 ballots cast by:

James ArthurBlaine LawsonFrancis BonahonAndrew M. OdlyzkoFelix E. BrowderKaren V. H. Parshall

Robert L. Bryant Gail Ratcliff
Jennifer Tour Chayes Mary Beth Ruskai

John B. Conway Bernard Russo (voting Associate Secretary)

Robert J. Daverman Donald G. Saari Clifford J. Earle Peter B. Shalen Joel Spencer Robert A. Fefferman Robert M. Fossum Michael Starbird B. A. Taylor John Franks Susan Friedlander Tahana Toro Frederick P. Gardiner Karen Vogtmann Jane Hawkins Lars B. Wahlbin

Arthur Jaffe

### 1. Election to the Executive Committee

In the election to the Executive Committee the result was

Robert Bryant 11

Karen Vogtmann 18

Accordingly, Vogtmann is declared elected, effective immediately, and ending when a replacement is determined in the election of February 2003.

## 2. Appointment to the Colloquium Editorial Committee

On Susan Friedlander's appointment to the Colloquium Editorial Committee, there were 27 votes in favor, 1 opposed, and 1 abstention. Accordingly, her appointment is approved.

## 3. Endorsement of the Statement on Tenure so as to speak in the name of the Society.

On endorsing the previously approved Statement on Tenure so as to speak in the name of the Society, the result was:

Yes	27
No	1
Abstain	1

Passage of a statement "so as to speak in the name of the Society" requires a favorable vote of two-thirds of the Council (voting) members. For this mail ballot there were 36 Council (voting) members. Accordingly, the Statement on Tenure is adopted in the name of the Society.

Robert J. Daverman Secretary

March 17, 1999

### ATTACHMENT C. BACKGROUND ON INDIVIDUAL DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS.

1998 individual dues revenue totaled \$1,440,000. The best current projection for 1999 individual dues revenue is \$1,412,000. The projected \$30,000 decline in individual dues is largely the result of two key changes in ordinary membership introduced for 1999: a) a new ordinary entry membership category with a reduced rate for new and recent ordinary members set at one-half ordinary low dues and b) an increase in the salary cutoff point between ordinary high and ordinary low dues from \$45,000 to \$55,000.

A natural question is what might the 1999 dues figure be had these changes in ordinary membership not been made. To answer this question, one must project the level of 1999 ordinary high and low members in the absence of the two changes. The most plausible assumption is that the number of ordinary high and low members in 1999 would follow the trends of recent years. Hence, the number of ordinary high members in 1999 would be unchanged from 1998, and the number of ordinary low members in 1999 would decline by three percent from their 1998 level, or about 180 fewer members than in 1998. (Ordinary low memberships declined by 5% from 1996 to 1997, and by 4% between 1997 and 1998.) With these assumptions for ordinary members, one can then estimate a hypothetical 1999 dues income of \$1,469,000. So the effect on dues revenue of the two changes is no greater than \$57,000. This compares favorably with the worst case estimate of \$89,000 made in May of 1998. Perhaps more importantly, the changes in ordinary membership appear to have increased the number of ordinary members by 500 over what they might have been without the changes.

Another key issue is what might the impact on dues revenue be if the high/low salary cutoff were raised from \$55,000 to \$65,000 for 2000. The best that one can do here is a rough estimate since 1) we don't know the salary distribution of our ordinary members and 2) we don't know how many individuals who make above \$55,000 already pay ordinary low dues. The best we can do for 1) is to use the salary distribution for the mathematics faculty. Based on the fall 1998 salary survey of the AMS-ASA-IMS-MAA Annual Survey, 20% of the faculty in mathematics departments make between \$55,000 and \$65,000. Assuming this distribution fits our ordinary high and low members, then approximately 1,700 earn salaries in the \$55-65K range. (This figure is based on the current estimate of 8,500 combined ordinary high and low members in 1999.) A \$33 reduction in dues for each of these ordinary high members means a total reduction in dues of about \$56,000.

The only way to estimate the favorable impact of 2) on the estimate is to see how close the current numbers of ordinary high and low members compares with that suggested by the salary distribution. The salary distribution figures say that 51% of the faculty earn more than \$55,000. As of February 28, 52% of the combined high and low ordinary members were ordinary high. This suggests very little "cheating" on dues level, hence there is no reason to lower the 1,700 figure.

One final note on the current trend in 1999 ordinary memberships. Our overall gains in ordinary members to date seems to be primarily due to higher than typical retention of 1998 ordinary members. This is a very encouraging sign.

Jim Maxwell March 15, 1999

## ATTACHMENT D. CALENDAR OF EVENTS

DATE	MEETING/HOLIDAY/HOLY DAY	SITE
April 1, 1999	Passover	
April 2, 1999	Good Friday	
April 4, 1999	Easter	
April 4, 1999	Daylight Savings Time Begins	
April 10, 1999	AMS Council Meeting (7:00 PM)	Las Vegas, NV
April 10-11, 1999	AMS Sectional Meeting  @ Univ. of Nevada-Las Vegas	Las Vegas, NV
April 13, 1999	Arnold Ross Lectures  @ Boston Museum of Science	Boston, MA
April 19, 1999	Joint Policy Board for Math (JPBM) Meeting	Washington, DC
April 21-22, 1999	Congressional Visits Day	Washington, DC
April 21-22, 1999 April 22-24, 1999	NCTM Annual Meeting	San Francisco, CA
April 24-25, 1999	AMS Sectional Meeting	Buffalo, NY
April 24-23, 1999	@ SUNY	Bullalo, N i
May 1-2, 1999 TENT	Conference Board of Math.	Washington, DC
	Sciences (CBMS) Meeting	
May 1-4, 1999	Council of Scientific Society	Washington, DC?
	Presidents (CSSP) Meeting	
May 6, 1999	Committee on Committees	Providence, RI
May 7-8, 1999	ECBT Meeting	Providence, RI
May 9, 1999	Mother's Day	
May 10, 1999	Math Institute Opening  @ MIT	Cambridge, MA
May 12-15, 1999	SIAM Annual Meeting	Atlanta, GA
May 13-15, 1999	Mathematical Sciences Education Board (MSEB) Meeting	Washington, DC?
May 19-22, 1999	AMS-SMM Joint International Meeting @ Univ. of N. Texas	Denton, TX
May 31, 1999	Holiday - Memorial Day	
June 5-10, 1999	Special Libraries Association (SLA) Annual Conference	Minneapolis, MN
June 7-8, 1999	US Math Olympiad	Washington, DC
June 8, 1999	Presidential Awards Breakfast	Washington, DC Washington, DC
June 20, 1999	Father's Day	washington, DC
July 4, 1999	Holiday - Independence Day	
July 5, 1999	Holiday-Independence Day observed	
July 5-9, 1999	International Congress on Industrial and Applied Mathematics (ICIAM'99)	Edinburgh, Scotland
July 12-15, 1999	Joint International Meeting Cosponsored by Australian Mathematical Society	Melbourne, Australia
July 31-August 2, 1999	MAA MathFest	Providence, RI
August 6-7, 1999	Excellence Task Force	Bloomington, IN
August 9, 1999	Holiday - Victory Day Note: AMS RI office closed; DC and MI offices are	e open
September 6, 1999	Holiday - Labor Day	
September 9-10, 1999	MREC Meeting	Ann Arbor, MI
September 11, 1999	Rosh Hashanah	2 Mill 2 M OO1, 1411
september 11, 1777	NOM Hamanan	

September 17-18, 1999	Committee on Meetings and Conferences (COMC) & Secretariat Meetings	Providence, RI
September 20, 1999	Yom Kippur	
September 24-25, 1999	Committee on Education (COE)	Washington, DC
September 25-26, 1999	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)	
September 25-26, 1999	AMS Sectional Meeting	Salt Lake City, UT
•	@ Univ. of Utah	·
September 30-	REU Conference	Washington, DC
October 3, 1999		_
October 2-3, 1999	AMS Sectional Meeting	Providence, RI
	@ Providence College	
October 8, 1999	ABC Meeting	Providence, RI
October 8-10, 1999	AMS Sectional Meeting	Austin, TX
	@ Univ. of Texas-Austin	
October 9-11, 1999	50th Anniversary of Moore	Cambridge, MA
	Instructorships @ MIT	<i>U</i> ,
October 11, 1999	Holiday - Columbus Day	
,	Note: AMS RI and DC offices closed; MI office is	open
October 15-17, 1999	AMS Sectional Meeting	Charlotte, NC
,	@ Univ. of North Carolina	,
October 16-17, 1999	AMS Committee on the Profession Chicago	o, IL
233333	(COPROF) Meeting	-,
October 23-24, 1999	AMS Committee on Publications	Chicago, IL
3000001 23 2 1, 1999	(CPUB) Meeting	Cineago, IL
October 31, 1999	Daylight Savings Time Ends	
31, 1999	Dayinghe Savings Time Ends	
November 2, 1999	Election Day	
November 11, 1999	Holiday - Veterans' Day	
1101011001 11, 1999	Note: AMS RI and DC offices are closed; MI office	e is open
November 12-13, 1999	BMS Chairs' Colloquium	Washington, DC
November 19-20, 1999	ECBT Meeting	Providence, RI
November 25, 1999	Holiday - Thanksgiving Day	Tiovidence, Ki
November 26, 1999	Holiday - Day After Thanksgiving Day	
140vember 20, 1999	Tronday Day Arter Thanksgiving Day	
December 4, 1999	Hanukkah	
December 4-5, 1999	TENTATIVE - CBMS Meeting	Washington, DC
December 5-7, 1999	<u> </u>	gton, DC
December 23, 1999	Holiday - Christmas	gion, DC
December 23, 1999	Note: AMS DC office is closed. RI and MI offices a	re onen
December 24, 1999	Holiday - Christmas Day Observed	ге орен.
December 25, 1999	Holiday - Christmas Day	
December 23, 1777	Holiday - Christmas Day	
January 1, 2000	Holiday - New Year's Day	
January 17, 2000	Holiday - Martin Luther King Day	
January 17, 2000	Note: AMS DC office closed; RI & MI open	
January 19-22, 2000	AMS-MAA-SIAM Annual Meeting	Washington, DC
January 19-22, 2000	AWS-WAA-SIAW Allitudi Weeting	w asimigton, DC
February 17-22, 2000	AAAS Annual Meeting	Washington, DC
February 21, 2000	Holiday - Washington's Birthday	washington, DC
1 cordary 21, 2000	Holiday - Washington's Birthday	
March 8, 2000	Ash Wednesday	
March 11-12, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting	Santa Barbara, CA
11111011 11 12, 2000	@ Univ. of CalifSanta Barbara	Sama Darbara, CA
	e Oniv. of CamDania Datuata	
April 1-2, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting	Lowell, MA
14pm 1-2, 2000	@ Univ. of Massachusetts	Lowell, MA
April 2, 2000	Daylight Savings Time begins	
трии 2, 2000	Dayngin Savings Time Degins	

April 7-9, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting  @ Univ. of Notre Dame	Notre Dame, IN
April 14-16, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting  @ Univ. of Southwestern Louisiana	Lafayette, LA
April 16, 2000	Palm Sunday	
April 19-20, 2000	Passover	
April 21, 2000	Good Friday	
April 23, 2000	Easter	
April 26-29, 2000	Arts in Healthcare Festival AMS Providence Provide	ence, RI
May 14, 2000	Mother's Day	
May 29, 2000	Memorial Day	
June 10-15, 2000	Special Libraries Association	Philadelphia, PA
Y 10.15.0000	(SLA) Annual Conference	
June 13-16, 2000	International Meeting Cosponsored by Danish, Norwegian and	Odense, Denmark
	Swedish Mathematical Societies	
June 18, 2000	Father's Day	
July 4, 2000	Holiday - Independence Day	
July 10-14, 2000	Third European Congress of Mathematics	Barcelona, Spain
August 7-12, 2000	AMS Special Summer Meeting "Mathematical Challenges of the 21st Century"  @ Univ. of California-LA	Los Angeles, CA
August 14, 2000	Holiday - Victory Day  Note: AMS RI offices closed; DC & MI open	
September 4, 2000	Holiday - Labor Day	
September 22-24, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting	Toronto, Ontario,
	@ University of Toronto	CANADA
September 29-30, 2000	Rosh Hashanah	
October 8-9, 2000	Yom Kippur	
October 9, 2000	Holiday - Columbus Day	
	Note: AMS RI & DC offices closed; MI office is op	pen
October 14-15, 2000	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)	
October 29, 2000	Daylight Savings Time ends	
November 3-5, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting  @ Columbia Univ.	New York, NY
November 7, 2000	Election Day	
November 10-12, 2000	AMS Sectional Meeting  @ Univ. of Alabama	Birmingham, AL
November 11, 2000	Holiday - Veterans Day	
November 23-24, 2000	Note: AMS RI & DC offices closed; MI open Holiday - Thanksgiving	
December 12-16, 2000	Joint International Meeting	Hong Kong, China
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		. 8 . 8,
December 21-22, 2000 December 25, 2000	Hanukkah Holiday - Christmas	
January 1, 2001	Holiday - New Year's Day	
January 15, 2001	Holiday - Martin Luther King Day	
	Note: AMS DC office closed; RI & DC open	
January 10-13, 2001	AMS-MAA Annual Meeting	New Orleans, LA
March 16-18, 2001	AMS Sectional Meeting	Columbia, SC

March 30-31, 2001	<ul><li>@ Univ. of South Carolina</li><li>AMS Sectional Meeting</li><li>@ Univ. of Kansas</li></ul>	Lawrence, KS
April 28-29, 2001	AMS Sectional Meeting  @ Stevens Institute of Tech.	Hoboken, NJ
June 30-July 14, 2001	IMO 2001 USA Meeting @ George Mason University	Washington, DC
July 17-20, 2001	Joint International Meeting	Lyons, France
October 2-3, 2001 October 13-14, 2001	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles) AMS Sectional Meeting @ Williams Colle	ge Williamstown, MA
January 6-9, 2002	AMS-MAA Annual Meeting	San Diego, CA
September 21-22, 2002	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)	
October 11-12, 2003	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)	
September 30-October 1, 2004 October 18-19, 2005	Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles) Sukkot (first two days of Tabernacles)	